
  
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 2012 
8:00 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER  

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
February 21, 2012, Regular Meeting 
February 21, 2012, Closed Session 
February 24 & 25, 2012, Special Meeting (Retreat) 

 1

 3  APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 6, 2012 AGENDA  13

8:05 4  SHERIFF’S OFFICE OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST CPT. DEE DEE ROMINGER 15

8:10 5  HOSPITALITY HOUSE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR FUNDING 

OPPORTUNITY THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SMALL CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM  

MS. LYNNE MASON 17

8:15 6  BID AWARD REQUEST FOR AQUATIC CENTER REPAIRS MR. ROBERT MARSH 23

8:20 7  FIRE MARSHAL/EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Adopting the 2010 Hazard 

Mitigation Plan 
B. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for 

VIPER Tower Grant for Green Hill 

MR. STEVE SUDDERTH  
27 

 
31

8:25 8  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 
C. Tax Lien Report 

MR. KELVIN BYRD 45

8:30 9  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Update on the Mediation and Restorative Justice 

Center’s Grant Application  
B. Proposed Job Description for Emergency Services 

Director 
C. Boards & Commissions 
D. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
49 

 
69 

 
73 
79

8:35 10  PUBLIC COMMENT  90

9:35 11  BREAK  90

9:40 12  CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

 90

10:00 13  ADJOURN  

 





AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

February 21, 2012, Regular Meeting 
February 21, 2012, Closed Session  
February 24 & 25, 2012, Special Meeting  
 

 
 

 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
February 21, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 
 
Chairman Miller opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the February 7, 2012, regular and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the February 7, 
2012, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the February 7, 2012, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the February 21, 2012, agenda. 
 

County Manager Geouque requested to add a Mediation and Restorative Justice Center Grant 
Application Request and a Closed Session for Attorney/Client matters, per G. S. 143-
318.11(a)(3). 

DRAFT 
030612 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the February 21, 2012, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MEDIATION AND RESTORATIVE JUSTICE CENTER GRANT APPLICATION REQUEST 

Ms. Melissa Johnson, Executive Director of the Mediation and Restorative Justice Center, 
requested authorization to apply for a pass-through grant from the US Department of Justice, 
Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance.  The amount was $128,000, $64,000 
per year over a two-year term, and would allow Watauga County Drug Treatment Court to serve 
additional participants as well as enhance current services to be more comprehensive and 
effective.  The Center planned to request funding from associated local agencies and utilize the 
County’s bottle tax funds, if approved by the Board, for the required 25% match.  If awarded, the 
grant funding would also replace operational funding currently received from Watauga County. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to authorize the submission of 
the US Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, pass-
through grant, contingent upon review by the County Attorney and Chairman Miller. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Ms. Marisa Cornell with the Drug Treatment Court updated the Board on the program by 
reporting that the Court had held graduation for seven of its participants since July 2011. 

PROPOSED CONTRACT WITH TRAIL DYNAMICS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A BIKE 

SKILLS AREA AT ROCKY KNOB PARK 

County Manager Geouque stated that, at the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, the Watauga 
County Tourism Development Authority and County Attorney were authorized to negotiate a 
contract with Trail Dynamics for the construction of a Bike Skills area at Rocky Knob Park.  The 
contracted amount was not to exceed $35,000 and the Tourism Development Authority was to 
fully fund the project with Watauga County to bear no costs.  The County Manager presented the 
contract for consideration. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the contract as 
prepared by the County Attorney and presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

3



SANITATION DEPARTMENT RECYCLING CENTER’S GRANT APPLICATION 

REQUEST FOR PURCHASE OF FORKLIFT 

Ms. Lisa Doty, Recycling Manager, requested authorization to apply for a grant from the North 
Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources with the funding, if awarded, to be 
used for the purchase a new forklift to replace the 1991 model currently in use with the County’s 
recycling effort. 
 
An initial quote of $34,051 was received for a new forklift; however, if the Board authorized the 
grant application, staff planned to solicit additional bids.  Based on the initial quote, the County’s 
match would be $5,675.16.  Ms. Doty announced that the County should receive approximately 
$4,000 in additional revenue from electronic recycling efforts and the current forklift would be 
recommended for surplus and auction through GovDeals.com.  Additional funds needed for the 
match could be allocated from the solid waste enterprise fund. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to authorize the submission of 
the grant application to the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
for the purchase of a new forklift for the Sanitation Department’s recycling efforts. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-345000 Elderly/Disabled Transportation Grant $4,000 
105550-431301 Elderly/Disabled Trans. Grant – Project on Aging $2,500 
104500-469846 Elderly/Disabled Trans. Grant – Watauga Opportunities  $5,000
104500-469845 Eld./Dis. Trans. Grant – New River Behavioral Healthcare  $1,500
143300-345000 Elderly/Disabled Transportation Grant  $4,000
145310-469845 Elderly/Disabled Trans. Grant – Dept. of Social Services $4,000 
 
The amendment was based on spending within programs for the first seven months.  The ROAP 
grant recipients have requested funding to POA and DSS to allow services to continue at reduced 
levels. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-349602 Rural Center EDC Grant  $44,843
104920-463002 EDC Jobs Creation Grant $44,843 
   
The amendment recognized the grant with the NC Rural Center Economic Development 
Program for Building Reuse and Restoration as approved at the December 20, 2011, Board 
meeting.  The local match for this grant will be provided by the Economic Development 
Director’s administrative time. 
    

030612 BCC Meeting

4



Account # Description Debit Credit 
143839-389000 Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $101,416
145480-438800 Crisis Intervention Payment $81,515 
145410-440002 Low Income Home Energy Assistance $19,901 
    

The amendment recognized changes in funding allocations from the State for two energy 
programs and administrative funds. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
283102-312110 Tax Revenue Deep Gap Fire District  $16,900
284340-469910 Deep Gap Fire District $16,900 
283102-312109 Tax Revenue Meat Camp Fire District  $16,000
284340-469909 Meat Camp Fire District $16,000 
283102-312108 Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Fire District  $5,600
284340-469908 Shawneehaw Fire District $5,600 
283102-312107 Tax Revenue Cove Creek Fire District  $9,200
284340-469907 Cove Creek Fire District $9,200 
283102-312106 Tax Revenue Zionville Fire District  $3,300
284340-469906 Zionville Fire District $3,300 
283102-312105 Tax Revenue Stewart Simmons Fire District  $11,500
284340-469905 Stewart Simmons Fire District $11,500 
283102-312104 Tax Revenue Beaver Dam Fire District  $3,000
284340-469904 Beaver Dam Fire District $3,000 
283102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire District  $12,000
284340-469901 Foscoe Fire District $12,000 
243102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Service District  $3,700
244340-469901 Foscoe Service District $3,700 
243102-312105 Tax Revenue Beech Mountain Service District  $400
244340-469998 Beech Mountain Service District $400 
243102-312107 Tax Revenue Cove Creek Service District  $10
244340-469907 Cove Creek Service District $10 
243102-312100 Tax Revenue Boone Rural Fire District  $41,200
244340-469905 Boone Rural Fire District $41,200 
 

The amendment recognized additional fire tax district revenues and payments due to fire 
departments. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-343314 Hazardous Materials (HazMat) Training Grant  $5,000
104330-449902 Hazardous Materials (HazMat) Exercise Grant $5,000 
    

The amendment recognized a grant from the NC Emergency Response Commission for 
Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning.  There was no County match for this grant which was 
accepted at the February 7, 2012, Board meeting. 
    

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

030612 BCC Meeting

5



MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  USDA’s Proposed Lease Request for the Location of the Watauga/Avery County Service 
Center 

County Manager Geouque stated that, at the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, approval was 
given to renew the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) lease for office space at the 
existing rate of $10.00 per square foot for a ten (10) year term.  Upon additional conversations 
with USDA personnel, at both the state and federal levels, the proposal originally sent to the 
County did not allow for a simple renewal but rather required the County to submit a “Request 
for Lease Proposal” as if it were a new lease.  As such, the new lease included requirements for 
improvements and services, at the County’s expense, that were not included as part of the initial 
lease agreement. 
 
The previous lease did not cover the County’s cost for utilities, maintenance and janitorial 
services.  Based on the new lease, the County will request reimbursement for the office space 
and services as provided to the USDA.  Also, the actual space as currently leased is 2,200 square 
feet, not the 1,718 square foot figure referenced at the January meeting.  The square footage may 
change, however, depending on USDA’s measurement and calculation, which could reduce the 
lease amount.  The current market rate, not including utilities and maintenance services, was $10 
to $16 per square foot. 
 
The County Manager stated that staff recommended the submission of a “Request for Lease 
Proposal” to the USDA in the amount of $18.47 per square foot, for an annual amount of 
$40,624, based upon office space, utilities, maintenance services, and improvements as required 
by the USDA.  This amount would allow the County to “break even” regarding costs associated 
with the lease. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to authorize the submission of the 
Request for Lease Proposal to the USDA in the amount of $18.47 per square foot for the space 
currently leased as presented by the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B.  Proposed Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of Surplus Property by Donation 

County Manager Geouque stated that, at the January 17, 2012, Board meeting, direction was 
given to staff to advertise the conveyance of surplus property, by donation, to the Boone 
Optimist Club, a local non-profit organization.  The advertisement has taken place and, therefore, 
adoption of a resolution authorizing the donation of the home side bleachers at the old Watauga 
High School to Boone Optimist Club was required to complete the process. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

030612 BCC Meeting

6



C.  Announcements 

County Manager Geouque shared the following announcements: 
 

 The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat is scheduled for Friday, February 24 (12:00 P.M. to 6:00 
P.M.) & Saturday, February 25, 2012, (9:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.) in the Commissioners’ 
Board Room. 

 
 The Watauga Drug Treatment Court Team invites Board members to observe a session of 

Drug Treatment Court on Wednesday, February 29, 2012, at 3:30 P.M. in the small 
courtroom. 

 
 An Intergovernmental Retreat is scheduled for Monday, March 5, 2012, from 5:00 P.M. 

to 7:00 P.M., on the 5th floor of the ASU Athletics Center, overlooking the stadium.  The 
meeting will include a presentation on local government finance from Ms. Madeleine 
Henley with North Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM).  

 
 The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, 

March 7, 2012, from 1:00 to 5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in 
Downtown Blowing Rock. 

 
 An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 

scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board 
Room.  
 

 The Board is invited to attend the Cooperative Extension’s Annual “Report to the 
People” luncheon which is scheduled for Tuesday, March 6, 2012, at the Watauga 
County Agricultural Conference Center at 11:45 A.M.  After enjoying a “local lunch,” a 
presentation on Watauga Extension’s highlights, accomplishments, and future goals will 
be given. 
 

 The Appalachian District Health Department invites the Board to attend a pre-event and 
event on Thursday, March 22, 2012, featuring a presentation regarding aerobic exercise 
and its relationship to the brain.  The event is sponsored through the “Communities 
Putting Prevention to Work” grant.  
 

 The Humane Society has requested the Board set a date to tour their new facilities as 
recently constructed through a partnership with the County.  The County Manager 
requested the Board review their calendars and submit potential dates for a tour. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

030612 BCC Meeting

7



CLOSED SESSION 

At 5:55 P.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to resume the open meeting at 
6:03 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED WATAUGA 

COUNTY GATED COMMUNITY ORDINANCE 

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to open the public hearing at 
6:05 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed Watauga County Gated Community 
Ordinance. 
 
Chairman Miller called upon Vice-Chairman Gable to review the events that led to the 
development of the proposed ordinance.  Vice-Chairman Gable stated that the Fire Commission 
had requested a policy be established detailing rules and standards for the installation of 
electronic access gates for gated communities. 
 
In response to questions from the Board, Fire Commission Chairman Ronnie Marsh stated that 
the Ordinance, if adopted, would not affect gates currently installed unless they were 
significantly changed and/or a different device was added to them.  Mr. Marsh stated that 
additional costs that would be incurred by a community to meet ordinance standards would be 
less than $1,000 turnkey.  Mr. Marsh also stated that, in the case of a power outage, the gates 
would automatically open, and remain open, until the power was restored, at which time the gate 
device would automatically close again. 
 
Commissioner Deal requested, for clarity purposes, that Section 100.08 read that in the event that 
a Property Owners’ Association (POA) existed, then the POA would be subject to fines, if found 
in violation of the ordinance, as opposed to the individual property owners of the community. 
 
There being no public comment, Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, 
moved to declare the public hearing closed at 6:16 P.M.  
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the Watauga County 
Gated Community Ordinance as amended in Section 100.08. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

030612 BCC Meeting

8



ADJOURN 

Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
6:17 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

10



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

SPECIAL MEETING, FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2012 & 
SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting on Friday, February 24, 
2012, and Saturday, February 25, 2012, in order to conduct a retreat to review goals and 
objectives for the County.  The meetings were held in the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners’ Conference Room, Boone, N.C. 
 

PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 
Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
Jim Deal, Commissioner 
Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 
David Blust, Commissioner 
Deron Geouque, Deputy County Manager 
Margaret Pierce, Finance Director  

 
Vice-Chairman Gable called the meeting to order on Friday, February 24, 2012, at 12:25 P.M., 
welcoming those in attendance. 
 

[Chairman Miller arrived at the meeting at 12:25 P.M. due to a prior commitment.] 
  

The following topics were discussed: 
 

FY 2012 REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF 2013 BUDGET  
MS. MARGARET PIERCE 

A.  Revenues 
B. Expenditures 
C. Fund Balance 
D. Debt Service Report 
E. Budget Calendar 

 

REVIEW OF CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 
MR. DERON GEOUQUE & MR. ROBERT MARSH 

A. Current CIP Status Report 
B. Pool Status Report 
C. Future Projects for Consideration 
D. Aho Container Site 
E. Daymark Lease  

 

TAX MATTERS 
MR. KELVIN BYRD 

A. Tax Reval Report 
B. Business and Personal Property Audits 

 

SCHOOL BOARD FUNDING ISSUES 
A. Schools’ Capital Improvement Plan 
B. FY 2013 Funding Needs 

DRAFT 
030612 BCC Meeting

11



 
EMS REPORT/DISCUSSION 
MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN 
 
LANDFILL ENERGY PROJECTS DISCUSSION 
MS. LISA DOTY AND MR. GED MOODY 

A. Report on Recycling and Methane to Electricity Project 
B. Review of Solar Energy Project 

 

[Commissioner Futrelle left the meeting at 3:15 P.M. due to a prior commitment.] 
 

A recess was declared at 4:05 P.M.  The meeting reconvened on Saturday, February 25, 2012, at 
9:00 A.M. 
 

WATAUGA COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST REPORT 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (EDC) REPORT/DISCUSSION 
MR. KEITH HONEYCUTT & MR. JOE FURMAN 
 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 
MR. JOE FURMAN 
 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TDA) 
MR. MATT VINCENT, MR. WRIGHT TILLEY, & MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE 
 

CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH 
VICE-CHAIRMAN VINCE GABLE 
 

MISCELLANEOUS & COMMISSIONER MATTERS 
MR. DERON GEOUQUE 

A. A Policy to Provide Preference to Local Vendors in Purchasing of Equipment and 
Supplies 

B. State Issues 
C. Commissioner Matters 

 

[Commissioner Futrelle left the meeting at 11:00 A.M. due to a prior commitment.] 
 

WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES 
 
The County Manager concluded the retreat by reviewing the issues addressed and seeking 
direction from the Board for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 

Chairman Miller adjourned the meeting at 12:00 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 

        ____________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 

Deron Geouque, Deputy County Manager 

030612 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 6, 2012, AGENDA 

 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Captain Rominger, Watauga County Sheriff’s Office, will request permission from the Board for 
Detective Adam Lentz to attend a Child Forensic Interview Training in Huntsville, Alabama.  
Detective Lentz will drive a County vehicle and thus the only expense will be his time. 
 
Per the County Ordinance, Board approval is required for all out-of-state travel.  Staff seeks 
direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

15



030612 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

HOSPITALITY HOUSE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 

THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SMALL 

CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Lynne Mason, Executive Director of Hospitality House, is requesting the Board apply for 
$250,000 through the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Catalyst Program.  
Mr. Joe Furman is available to assist Ms. Mason if the Board wishes to apply for the funds. 
 
Board action is requested to apply for funds through the Community Development Block Grant 
Small Cities Catalyst Program and set the two public hearings for March 20th and April 17th. 
 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

17



030612 BCC Meeting

18



030612 BCC Meeting

19



030612 BCC Meeting

20



030612 BCC Meeting

21



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

22



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR AQUATIC CENTER REPAIRS 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh will present bids for the repair of the County’s aquatic center.  The repairs are 
part of the study by Sutton-Kennerly & Associates that prioritizes deficiencies and safety risks 
with the facility.  MBI was the low bidder in the amount of $50,300 with 33 days to complete the 
project.  The contract does have a bonus provision for early completion.  Mr. Marsh, however, is 
recommending the contract be awarded to Dallas Lawrence Construction who was the next 
lowest bidder in the amount of $52,843.22 with 21 days to complete the project. 
 
Based on conversations with the County Attorney, it has been determined that the County would 
not have the option to award the bid to Dallas Lawrence Construction and would be required to 
either award the contract to MBI Builders or reject the bids and re-advertise. 
 
Direction is requested from the Board. 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

23



030612 BCC Meeting

24



030612 BCC Meeting

25



030612 BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FIRE MARSHAL/EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution Adopting the 2010 Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Steve Sudderth will present a resolution for the Board to adopt the Watauga County Hazard 
Mitigation Plan.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency requires local jurisdictions to 
prepare and adopt a hazard mitigation plan.  Failure to adopt such a plan precludes the eligibility 
of flood insurance and FEMA reimbursement for disasters.  The plan has been approved by 
FEMA, State Emergency Management, and the Towns of Beech Mountain, Blowing Rock, 
Boone, and Seven Devils. 
 
Board action is requested to adopt the resolution as presented. 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

27



 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION OF THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens and property within Watauga County are subject to the effects 
of natural hazards that pose threats to lives and cause damage to property, and with the 
knowledge and experience that certain areas of the county are particularly vulnerable to  
Winter Storms, flooding, high winds, earthquakes, wildfires; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires to seek ways to mitigate the impact of identified hazard 

risks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of 

Chapter 143; Parts 3, 5, and 8 of Article 19 of Chapter 160A; and Article 8 of Chapter 160A of 
the North Carolina General Statutes, delegated to local governmental units the responsibility to 
adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its 
citizenry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Section 1 Part 166A of 

the North Carolina General Statutes (adopted in Session Law 2001-214 --- Senate Bill 300 
effective July 1, 2001), states therein in Item (a) (2) “For a state of disaster proclaimed pursuant 
to G.S. 166A-6(a) after August 1, 2002, the eligible entity shall have a hazard mitigation plan 
approved pursuant to the Stafford Act;” and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 states that local 

governments must develop an All-Hazards Mitigation Plan in order to be eligible to receive 
future Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Funds and other disaster-related assistance funding 
and that said Plan must be updated and adopted within a five year cycle; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Watauga County Emergency Management Office has performed a 

comprehensive review and evaluation of each section of the previously approved Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and has updated the said plan as required under regulations at 44 CFR Part 201 
and according to guidance issued by the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the 
North Carolina Division of Emergency Management; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Watauga County Board of Commissioners to fulfill this 

obligation in order that the County will be eligible for federal and state assistance in the event 
that a state of disaster is declared for a hazard event affecting the County. 

 
 
 

DRAFT 
030612 BCC Meeting

28



 

 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

of County hereby:  
 

1. Adopts the County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

2. Vests the Watauga County Emergency Management Office with the responsibility, 
authority, and the means to:  

 
a. Inform all concerned parties of this action. 

 
b. Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms which 

undertake to study, survey, map and identify floodplain areas, and cooperate 
with neighboring communities with respect to management of adjoining 
floodplain areas in order to prevent exacerbation of existing hazard impacts. 

 
3. Appoints the Watauga County Emergency Management Office to assure that the Hazard 

Mitigation Plan is reviewed annually and every five years as specified in the Plan to 
assure that the Plan is in compliance with all State and Federal regulations and that any 
needed revisions or amendments to the Plan are developed and presented to the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners for consideration. 

 
4. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the 

objectives of the Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
 
ADOPTED on this the 6th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________     (SEAL)  
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

29



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

30



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FIRE MARSHAL/EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT MATTERS 

B.  Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for VIPER Tower Grant for Green Hill 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Sudderth will request the Board accept a grant from the North Carolina Division of 
Emergency Management as a Sub-grantee in the amount of $682,000 for a VIPER tower at the 
Green Hill site in Blowing Rock.  In addition, a Memorandum of Agreement between the County 
and the State of North Carolina, Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency 
Management, and the Highway Patrol is required as part of the grant acceptance. 
 
Board action is requested to accept the grant award and approve the Memorandum of Agreement 
as presented. 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

31



030612 BCC Meeting

32



030612 BCC Meeting

33



030612 BCC Meeting

34



030612 BCC Meeting

35



030612 BCC Meeting

36



030612 BCC Meeting

37



030612 BCC Meeting

38



030612 BCC Meeting

39



030612 BCC Meeting

40



030612 BCC Meeting

41



030612 BCC Meeting

42



030612 BCC Meeting

43



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

44



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

A.  Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the monthly collections report and be available for 
questions and discussion.  
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

B.  Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  

C.  Tax Lien Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Kelvin Byrd will review the Tax Lien Report to be handed out at the meeting.  Board action 
is requested to accept the report listing delinquent tax bills that are liens on real property and to 
authorize the advertisement of such liens.  

030612 BCC Meeting

45



030612 BCC Meeting

46



030612 BCC Meeting

47



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

48



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Update on the Mediation and Restorative Justice Center’s Grant Application 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the previous Board meeting, Melissa Johnson, Executive Director of the Mediation and 
Restorative Justice Center, requested the Board provide a $16,000 match for a BJA grant to 
continue the Watauga Drug Treatment Court program.  The Board provided a one-time 
allocation of $35,000 to continue the program until other funding sources could be secured.  The 
grant would extend the program through Fiscal Year 2012-13.  County staff has verified that 
ABC bottle tax funds may be used to fund the Drug Treatment Court.  The remaining ABC funds 
(approximately $11,690) that were not paid out due to the dissolution of New River will be 
redirected to reduce the $35,000 provided by the County for Fiscal Year 2011-12.   
 
Notification of award for the BJA grant will not be known until August or September.  Should 
the Board wish, the full $18,000 in ABC bottle tax funds may be used as the match for the grant 
or used to carry out the program at a reduced level through Fiscal Year 2012-13.   
 
Direction from the Board is requested as to the allocation of the remaining $11,690 in ABC 
funds for the current fiscal year and budgeting the full ABC proceeds for next year’s budget. 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

49



030612 BCC Meeting

50



030612 BCC Meeting

51



030612 BCC Meeting

52



030612 BCC Meeting

53



030612 BCC Meeting

54



030612 BCC Meeting

55



030612 BCC Meeting

56



030612 BCC Meeting

57



030612 BCC Meeting

58



030612 BCC Meeting

59



030612 BCC Meeting

60



030612 BCC Meeting

61



030612 BCC Meeting

62



030612 BCC Meeting

63



030612 BCC Meeting

64



030612 BCC Meeting

65



030612 BCC Meeting

66



030612 BCC Meeting

67



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

68



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Proposed Emergency Services Director Job Description  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Board direction from the annual retreat, staff has prepared a job description for the 
Emergency Services Director position.  The position would be classified as a grade 19 on the 
County’s salary plan which has a minimum salary of $49,663, midpoint of $63,320, and a 
$76,977 maximum.  This classification would place the position two levels above the Board of 
Elections Director and Veterans Services Officer.   
 
Staff seeks Board direction.   

 

 

  

030612 BCC Meeting

69



030612 BCC Meeting

70



030612 BCC Meeting

71



Blank Page 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

72



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Boards and Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
During the regular Town Council meeting, held on February 14, the Blowing Rock Town 
Council recommended Ms. Brenda Fairbetter to serve as the ETJ member of their Planning 
Board and Mr. Terry Story to serve as the ETJ member of their Board of Adjustment. 
 
At their February 2012 meeting, the AppalCART Advisory Board recommended the attached 
slate of officers be officially appointed/reappointed to their Board:  Mr. Jerry Moretz (at-large 
member); Mr. Greg Lovins (ASU representative); Ms. Angie Boitnotte (at-large member); Mr. 
David Blust (Board of Commissioners representative); Mr. Donald Ray (user representative); 
Mr. Barry Sauls (ASU representative); Mr. Andy Ball (Town of Boone representative); and Ms. 
Jeannine Taylor (Human Service Agency representative). 
 
The above are first readings; therefore, no action is required at this time. 
 
 
 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

73



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Anita.Fogle
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2012 10:26 AM
To: 'Sharon Greene'
Subject: RE: Recommendations

Thanks Sharon! 
 
I will place these recommendations on the agenda for our next meeting.  We just had a meeting last night, so our next one is 
March 6th.  Our Board traditionally  holds two readings prior to voting on Boards & Commissions appointments, so that may 
occur at their 2nd meeting in March, which will be the 20th.  I will let you know as soon as action is taken. 
 
I hope you are having a great week! 
 
Thanks, 
Anita 
 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
Watauga County 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, North Carolina  28607 
828.265.8000 Phone 
828.264.3230 Fax 
Anita.Fogle@watgov.org 
www.WataugaCounty.org  
 

From: Sharon Greene [mailto:brtownclerk@bellsouth.net]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2012 5:18 PM 
To: anita.fogle@ncmail.net 
Subject: Recommendations 
 
 
Hi Anita, 
 
I’m not sure who I need to let know, but… the following people were recommended to serve at the ETJ members of our Planning 
Board and Board of Adjustment during the regular Town Council meeting held on February 14, 2012.  Brenda Fairbetter 
was  recommended to serve at the ETJ member of the Planning Board and Terry Story was recommended to serve on the Board 
of Adjustment.  If you need further information, please let me know. 
 
Thanks 
Sharon 

030612 BCC Meeting

74



030612 BCC Meeting

75



030612 BCC Meeting

76



030612 BCC Meeting

77



030612 BCC Meeting

78



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D.  Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Charter Communications has changed the day and time that they air the Watauga County Board 
of Commissioners meetings.  The Board meetings will now air on the Fridays, in the week the 
live meeting was held, at 7:00 P.M.  
 
Appalachian State would like to invite the Commissioners, School Board members, and Town 
Council members, to campus on May 7, 2012, from 9:00AM to 2:00 PM.  The purpose of the 
meeting would be to provide an update on major activities taking place on campus such as 
construction projects, strategic priorities, state funding and its impact on the campus and major 
initiatives involving the local community.  The day would consist of a tour, lunch, and meeting 
with University officials.  They would like for this to become an annual event.   
 
An Intergovernmental Retreat is scheduled for Monday, March 5, 2012, from 5:00 P.M. to 7:00 
P.M., on the 5th floor of the ASU Athletics Center, overlooking the stadium.  The meeting will 
include a presentation on local government finance from Ms. Madeleine Henley with North 
Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM).  
 
The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, 
March 7, 2012, from 1:00 to 5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in 
Downtown Blowing Rock. 
 
An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 
scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room.  
 
The Board is invited to attend the Cooperative Extension’s Annual “Report to the People” 
luncheon which is scheduled for Tuesday, March 6, 2012, at the Watauga County Agricultural 
Conference Center at 11:45 A.M.  After enjoying a “local lunch,” a presentation on Watauga 
Extension’s highlights, accomplishments, and future goals will be given. 
 
The Appalachian District Health Department invites the Board to attend a pre-event and event on 
Thursday, March 22, 2012, featuring a presentation regarding aerobic exercise and its 
relationship to the brain.  The event is sponsored through the “Communities Putting Prevention 
to Work” grant.  
 
The Humane Society has requested the Board set a date to tour their new facilities as recently 
constructed through a partnership with the County.  The County Manager requests the Board 
review their calendars and submit potential dates for a tour. 
  

030612 BCC Meeting

79



030612 BCC Meeting

80



030612 BCC Meeting

81



030612 BCC Meeting

82



030612 BCC Meeting

83



030612 BCC Meeting

84



030612 BCC Meeting

85



030612 BCC Meeting

86



030612 BCC Meeting

87



030612 BCC Meeting

88



030612 BCC Meeting

89



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BREAK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

CLOSED SESSION 

 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

030612 BCC Meeting

90


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Sheriff's Out-of-State Travel Request
	Hospitality House Request to Apply for Funding Opportunity through the CDBG Small Cities Catalyst Program
	Bid Award Request for Aquatic Center Repairs
	Fire Marshal/Emergency Management Matters
	Proposed Resolution Adopting the 2010 Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Proposed MOU for VIPER Tower Grant for Green Hill

	Tax Matters
	Tax Lien Report

	Misc Admin Matters
	Update on the Mediation and Restorative Justice Center's Grant Application
	Proposed Emergency Services Director Job Description
	Boards and Commissions
	Announcements

	Public Comment



